
Marin/Sonoma
Mosquito & Vector Control District

595 Helman Lane
Cotati, California 94931

1-800-231-3236 (toll free) 707-285-2210 (fax)

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
AGENDA

DATE: April 15, 2015
TIME: 7:00 PM
LOCATION: District Headquarters

595 Helman Lane
Cotati, Ca 94931

Items marked * are enclosed attachments.
Items marked # will be handed out at the meeting.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL (13 members must be present for a quorum)

Steve Ayala, Petaluma Paul Libeu, Rohnert Park
Nancy Barnard, Corte Madera Shaun McCaffery, Healdsburg
Charles Bouey, Sonoma Phil Paisley, Ross
Tom Bradner, Larkspur Bill Pitcher, Santa Rosa
Lee Braun, Belvedere Sandra Ross, Mill Valley
Martin Castro, Windsor Herb Rowland, Jr., Novato
Tamara Davis, Sonoma Co. at Large Ed Schulze, Marin Co. at Large
Frank Egger, Fairfax Fredrick Smith, Marin Co. at Large
Laura Fennema, Tiburon Richard Stabler, Sonoma Co. at Large
Una Glass, Sebastopol Judith Trusendi, San Rafael
William Holland, San Anselmo Yvonne Van Dyke, Cotati

Open Seats:
Cloverdale, Sausalito

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special assistance to participate in this
meeting, please contact the Marin/Sonoma Mosquito & Vector Control District (MSMVCD) at 1-800-231-3236.

Translators, American Sign Language interpreters, and/or assistive listening devices for individuals with hearing disabilities
will be available upon request. A minimum of 48 hours is needed to ensure the availability of translation service.

MSMVCD hereby certifies that this agenda has been posted in accordance with the requirements of the Government Code.



4. APPOINTMENT OF NEW TRUSTEES
Laura Fennema is the new trustee for the Town of Tiburon and Fredrick Smith is
the new trustee for Marin County at Large.

5. PUBLIC TIME

6. CONSENT CALENDAR
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

B.* MINUTES – Minutes for Board Meeting held February 11, 2015.

C.* FINANCIAL
Warrants – February 2015
February Payroll: $162,957.98
February Expenditures: $492,300.79
Total: $655,258.77

D.* FINANCIAL
Warrants – March 2015
March Payroll: $175,622.16
March Expenditures: $502,215.17
Total: $678,244.32

ACTION NEEDED
INFORMATION ENCLOSED

E. ENDING ACCOUNT BALANCES:
Operating Fund: $5,291,472.27

F.* 3rd QUARTER FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR FY 2014/15

INFORMATION ENCLOSED

Public Time is time provided by the board so the public may make comment on any
item not on the agenda.

The public will be given an opportunity to speak on each agenda item at the time the
item is presented. Once the public comment portion of any item on this agenda has
been closed by the Board, no further comment from the public will be permitted unless
authorized by the Board President and if so authorized, said additional public
comment shall be limited to the provision of information not previously provided to
the Board or as otherwise limited by order of the Board.

Please state your name and address and provide the President with the Speaker Card
so you can be properly included in the consideration of the item.

Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes per person or twenty (20) minutes
per subject in total so that all who wish to speak can be heard.



7. PUBLIC HEARING
A.* Open Public Hearing and consideration of the levy of assessments for

the proposed new Assessment No. 3, the Marin/Sonoma Mosquito and
Vector Control District, Mosquito, Vector and Disease Control
Assessment.

1. Introductory comments and general overview of the proposed
Marin/Sonoma Mosquito and Vector Control District, Mosquito,
Vector and Disease Control Assessment, Assessment #3 (by Staff,
Board and Assessment Engineer).

2. President outlines Public Hearing procedures:
 Each public speaker must fill out a speaker card and will have 3

minutes to address the Board.
 All oral questions must be asked and written questions must be

submitted in this section before questions are answered.
 Members of the public can request a replacement ballot at the

meeting. Kyle Tankard of SCI will supply replacement ballots.
 All ballots must be submitted to the Tabulator prior to the close of

the public input portion of the public hearing. The Tabulator will
be present at the meeting to receive ballots.

3. Open Public Input.

4. Public provides comments.

5. Staff, Assessment Engineer, and Legal Counsel respond to questions
raised (short recess may be needed to organize answers).

6. Last call for submittal of ballots.

7. Close Public Input portion of Public Hearing.

B. Board discussion of item, if necessary.

C. Board President directs Gilardi & Co. LLC, the tabulator, to begin the
tabulation of all returned ballots. (See motion below)

D. Public Hearing continued to May 13, 2015, at 7:00 pm at the
Marin/Sonoma Mosquito and Vector Control District’s offices, 595
Helman Lane, Cotati.

ACTION NEEDED
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Consider a motion to continue the hearing to May 13, 2015, direct Gilardi & Co. LLC to
tabulate the ballots and bring the results to the continued hearing.
INFORMATION ENCLOSED



8. NEW BUSINESS
A.* Request to authorize the President to execute an agreement for

General Counsel services with Best Best and Krieger
Staff Report:
The District's current General Counsel for the past three years, Janet
Coleson, is changing law firms. The change is likely to take place before
the next regularly scheduled Board meeting on May 13, 2015. After she
leaves her current law firm of Richards Watson & Gershon. Ms. Coleson
would like to continue serving as the District’s General Counsel at the same
rate and under the same terms as the current agreement with Richards
Watson & Gershon. Ms. Coleson is moving to the law firm of Best Best
and Krieger, which has a large public agency practice and represents
numerous cities, towns, special districts and joint powers agencies
throughout the state. The firm has eight offices in California and one office
in Washington D.C. As with the previous agreement, the proposed
agreement for services can be canceled by the District at any time.

During her tenure as the District's General Counsel, Ms. Coleson has
gained an in-depth understanding of this organization, the legal issues it
faces, the Board and staff. Current plans call for her to advise the Board in
its upcoming review of several important matters in the next few months,
including the Environmental Impact Report and the Board's review of its
Hearing Panel's decision in a personnel matter.

Should the Board decline to retain Ms. Coleson as General Counsel,
Richards Watson & Gershon may be able to supply another attorney after
Ms. Coleson leaves, although potential staffing and contract terms would
need to be discussed with the law firm.

In summary, this request is for the Board to authorize the President to
execute an agreement in substantially the form as the attached agreement
for General Counsel Services with the law firm of Best Best and Krieger
with Janet Coleson to serve as the named General Counsel, at the same rate
and under the same terms as the current agreement with Richards Watson
& Gershon. Authorization is also requested for the District Manager to
terminate the agreement with Ms. Coleson’s current law firm of Richards
Watson & Gershon.

ACTION NEEDED
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Authorize the President to execute the attached agreement for General Counsel Services
with the law firm of Best Best and Krieger with Janet Coleson as the named General
Counsel. Direct the District Manager to terminate the agreement with Ms. Coleson’s
current law firm of Richards Watson & Gershon.
INFORMATION ENCLOSED



9. COMMITTEE & STAFF REPORTS
A. Legislative & Regulatory Committee

Report by Tamara Davis, Chair

10. # MANAGER’S REPORT

11. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

12. OPEN TIME FOR BOARD OR STAFF COMMENTS

13. ADJOURNMENT

FOR THE HEALTH AND COMFORT OF ALL, PLEASE REFRAIN FROM WEARING FRAGRANCES AND
SCENTED PRODUCTS TO THIS AND ALL MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL BOARD MEETINGS.

CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED BY THE DISTRICT FROM RESIDENTS OR ANY OTHER PARTY
SHALL BE READ ALOUD OR HANDED OUT TO THE BOARD



Minutes of February 11, 2015
Marin/Sonoma M.V.C.D.

1

Marin/Sonoma Mosquito & Vector Control District

Board of Trustees
595 Helman Lane
Cotati, CA 94931

February 11, 2015

MINUTES

1. CALL TO ORDER
President Van Dyke called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL
Members present:
Ayala, Steve Holland, William
Barnard, Nancy Libeu, Paul
Bouey, Charles McCaffery, Shaun
Braun, Lee Paisley, Phil
Castro, Martin Ross, Sandra
Davis, Tamara Schulze, Ed
Egger, Frank Stabler, Richard
Glass, Una Van Dyke, Yvonne

Members absent:
Bradner, Tom
Pitcher, Bill
Rowland Jr., Herb
Trusendi, Judith

Open seats: Cloverdale, Marin Co. at Large, Sausalito, Tiburon

Others present:
Phil Smith, District Manager
Erik Hawk, Assistant Manager
Janet Coleson, General Counsel
Vicki Hausknecht, Financial/Benefits Manager
Nizza Sequeira, PR Director
Kristen Holt, Biologist
Chris Mohrman, Field Technician
Nick Picinich, Rodent Control Specialist

A quorum was present, and a due notice had been published.



Minutes of February 11, 2015
Marin/Sonoma M.V.C.D.

2

4. PUBLIC TIME
No public present.

5. CONSENT CALENDAR
A. Changes to Agenda/Approval of Agenda

B. Minutes – Minutes for Board Meeting held January 11, 2015.

C. Financial
Warrants – January 2015
January Payroll: $160,489.85
January Expenditures: $391,461.12
Total: $551,950.97

D. ENDING ACCOUNT BALANCES:
Operating Fund: $4,937,970.54

It was M/S Trustee Davis/Trustee Schulze to accept the Consent Calendar.

Motion passed with:
Ayes: Trustee Ayala, Trustee Barnard, Trustee Bouey, Trustee Braun, Trustee Castro,
Trustee Davis, Trustee Egger, Trustee Glass, Trustee Holland, Trustee Libeu, Trustee
McCaffery, Trustee Paisley, Trustee Ross, Trustee Schulze, Trustee Stabler, and Trustee
Van Dyke
No: (none)
Abstain: (none)
Absent: Trustee Bradner, Trustee Pitcher, Trustee Rowland, Trustee Trusendi

6. NEW BUSINESS
A. Public Relations Department Report

Nizza Sequeira, the District’s PR Director, explained that she has recently
been working with Assistant Manager Hawk, Manager Smith and SCI
Consulting on the forthcoming Benefit Assessment to provide outreach and
information. She also attended a seminar with Manager Smith which trained
attendees on how to produce video recordings with a cell phone. This could
be a good tool to show the public what our technicians do on a daily basis
e.g. as treating catch basins, going out on service requests and working in the
marshes. These videos will be posted on our Twitter, Facebook and
YouTube pages. Currently there are Lyme disease awareness ads running in
the Marin Independent Journal and Press Democrat. On the radio we chose
to talk specifically about flipping, dumping and draining containers that hold
water because we are noticing heavier mosquito production many weeks
earlier than usual. Also, with the drought more people are trying to conserve
water so we want to be sure they are using mosquito-proof containers. We
will be celebrating the District’s “100” year Open House this May 30, 2015.
Looking back, we had our very first Open House in 2007, which brought in
about 250 people. Since then the attendance has more than doubled. The
main purpose of the Open House event is to raise awareness and educate the



Minutes of February 11, 2015
Marin/Sonoma M.V.C.D.

3

public about mosquitoes, vector-borne disease and the services our District
provides. We also want to give the public a hands-on experience when they
attend the event, so our staff always works hard to create educational games
and interactive booths.

7. CLOSED SESSION
A. Closed Session pursuant to California Government Code Section

54956.9(d)(2) and (e)(1): One Matter

B. Reconvene to Open Session. Report from closed sessions (if any).
Nothing to report from closed session.

8. CONTINUED BUSINESS
A. Overlay Assessment Project (District Three): Report and

Recommendations by Benefit Assessment Changes/Long-Term Strategy
Committee, District staff and SCI Consulting.
Trustee Libeu gave a short presentation to explain a spreadsheet that he had
produced for the District’s use entitled “Marin/Sonoma Mosquito & Vector
Control District: Estimated Costs and Income, Fiscal Year 2015-16.” The
spreadsheet was notable in that it clearly presented at a glance the
distribution of income and costs between the two existing assessment
districts and the third, proposed new benefit assessment district.

Several Trustees and Manager Smith expressed their appreciation for Trustee
Libeu’s efforts and work product.

Manager Smith explained that the proposed actions before the Board in
connection with the proposed new assessment is a continuation of what the
board has been working on for several months. At the prior meeting in
January, the board approved the preparation of the documentation,
finalization of the preliminary Engineer’s report, and preparation of the two
resolutions now before the Board. Manager Smith pointed out that if the
resolutions are passed by the Board, they would enact the next phase of
balloting, ordering the mailing of the ballots and accompanying legal notice.

Mary Schilts from SCI explained that the Engineer’s report for District 3 is
similar to that for District 2, with a few differences. The annual change in
the Consumer Price Index (CPI) calculation for the San Francisco Bay Area
applies up to a maximum of 5%. This mirrors what we have in District 2.
The services section is significantly different from the Engineer’s report for
District 2. Manager Smith and Assistant Manager Hawk reviewed and
edited this section in depth to be sure that it reflects the most recent
understanding of the services that are being provided currently throughout
the entire district. There are 3 zones that are reflected in District 3, and
District 2 only has two zones. This is because the legal landscape changes
over time. The general benefits calculations for District 3 are similar to
those for District 2; however they will not be exactly the same. Each district



Minutes of February 11, 2015
Marin/Sonoma M.V.C.D.

4

has a slightly different methodology and this reflects our changing
understanding of the requirements under Proposition 218. Another factor
that SCI looks at is census data, and the census data that was used for
District 2 was from the year 2000. For District 3 the more recent data from
the census in 2010 was used.

Trustee Holland asked if the CPI was for all consumers or a segment of
consumers.
Maria Garcia-Adarve explained that it is the CPI for San Francisco and
Oakland Bay Area, so it is for all consumers, and the period used is the
change in the CPI from December to December.

Manager Smith explained that the District has gone to great lengths to ensure
the public is informed about how the CPI escalating clause will work. The
information in multiple places such as the ballot legal notice and web site.

Maria Garcia-Adarve thanked Trustee Libeu for all his work and help that he
has provided in preparing the preliminary budget for FY 2015-16. After
collaborating with Manager Smith, Financial Benefits Manager Vicki
Hausknecht and herself they decided that the best way to allocate the budget
among the three districts is to provide a single budget that is divided into
three sections. Each district is responsible for its portion of the expenses.

It was M/S Trustee Schulze/Trustee Holland to accept Resolution 2014/15-05 adopting
Proposition 218 Assessment Ballot Proceedings Procedures.

Trustee Egger stated that the District sent out a mail survey to make residents aware
that the District is looking at options to fund its increased costs. When reading it, it
wasn’t clear that it was going to be a new tax over and above the existing tax. He
went on to state that in his opinion the driving force behind the new assessment
tonight is the unfunded Marin County Employee Retirement Association (MCERA)
unfunded pension liabilities and the post-employment benefit liabilities. He
explained that MCERA is about $800 million in the hole. Mr. Egger encouraged the
board to look at some other alternatives to fund some of these expenses. Mr. Egger
stressed that he will be voting “No” on the two resolutions tonight.

Trustee Paisley added that he agreed with Trustee Egger and his concern about
people understanding what they are voting for. This is not a total tax of $12; it is in
addition to their existing tax.

Trustee Braun stated that both comments are well considered but these also have
been considered a number of times at our board meetings and various committee
meetings. He appreciates the perspective from both Trustee Egger and Trustee
Paisley but would like to move forward.

Motion passed with:
Ayes: Trustee Ayala, Trustee Barnard, Trustee Bouey, Trustee Braun, Trustee Castro,
Trustee Davis, Trustee Glass, Trustee Holland, Trustee Libeu, Trustee McCaffery, Trustee
Ross, Trustee Schulze, Trustee Stabler, and Trustee Van Dyke
No: Trustee Egger, Trustee Paisley



Minutes of February 11, 2015
Marin/Sonoma M.V.C.D.

5

Abstain: (none)
Absent: Trustee Bradner, Trustee Pitcher, Trustee Rowland, Trustee Trusendi

It was M/S Trustee Davis/Trustee Holland to accept Resolution 2014/15-04 initiating
proceedings, providing intention to levy assessments, preliminarily approving engineer’s
report, and providing for notice of hearing, and the mailing of assessment ballots for the
Marin/Sonoma Mosquito and Vector Control District, Mosquito, Vector and Disease
Control Assessment (Assessment No. 3).

Motion passed with:
Ayes: Trustee Ayala, Trustee Barnard, Trustee Bouey, Trustee Braun, Trustee Castro,
Trustee Davis, Trustee Glass, Trustee Holland, Trustee Libeu, Trustee McCaffery, Trustee
Ross, Trustee Schulze, Trustee Stabler, and Trustee Van Dyke
No: Trustee Egger, Trustee Paisley
Abstain: (none)
Absent: Trustee Bradner, Trustee Pitcher, Trustee Rowland, Trustee Trusendi

9. COMMITTEE & STAFF REPORTS
A. Legislative & Regulatory Committee

Trustee Davis mentioned that she will be meeting with MVCAC Legislative
Committee on March 1st. They will go through all the bills that are being
followed for Mosquito Districts throughout the state. The Committee will be
meeting with our legislators in our two counties. There are new legislators
and therefore they feel it is important to meet with them to update them on
what the Districts are doing.

10. MANAGER’S REPORT
Assistant Manager Hawk explained that in the interest of time he would limit his
verbal report to update the Board on the winter salt marsh mosquito Aedes
squamiger, which is maturing much faster this year as well as the pale salt marsh
mosquito Aedes dorsalis. Since Operations has observed significant populations,
the unusual situation has required staff to apply larvicide treatments already.
(Assistant Manager’s entire report is included in the February Board packet)

Trustee Libeu asked how the District is doing relative to last year in terms of
mosquito problems.

Assistant Manager Hawk explained that our summer species Aedes dorsalis is
showing up even earlier than last year, which was in late February.

Manager Smith reported that the Programmatic Environmental Impact Report
(PEIR) is now under review by General Counsel. Once the review is complete, staff
will bring the PEIR to the Board for review and consideration for public release for
the 45-day comment period. Following the comment period, staff will bring the
draft final PEIR to the Board for consideration for certification. Trustees have a
choice of receiving a printed summary version of the draft PEIR accompanied by a
CD of the entire document with appendices and references, or the entire document
in paper form in a large binder (each copy costs about $350) - or just to receive only
the CD. The document will be available on the District’s web site and paper copies



Minutes of February 11, 2015
Marin/Sonoma M.V.C.D.

6

will also be available in certain public libraries. (Manager’s entire report is
included in the February Board packet)

11. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS
No written communications.

12. OPEN TIME FOR BOARD OR STAFF
Trustee Barnard expressed her concern about an email which included her name in
the email stream regarding Trustee Braun attending the Town of Fairfax Council
meeting, which she felt was to rebut Trustee Egger’s report that he was giving that
night.

Trustee Braun responded to Trustee Barnard stating that he introduced himself as an
appointee to the Board from the City of Belvedere and currently serving as the Vice
President of Marin/Sonoma Mosquito & Vector Control District (MSMVCD), along
with introducing the current Board President. Mr. Braun apologized to Trustee
Barnard if he caused her any embarrassment. A discussion ensued.

Trustee Davis explained that Trustee Barnard’s point has been made.

Trustee Egger reported about a couple vendors he felt whose products were worth
looking at after seeing them at the Mosquito & Vector Control Association of
California Conference in Monterey. Clarke has a product called Merus, which is an
adulticide that MSMVCD is going to try in West Marin locations. Another
company called Application Dynamics also has an adulticide product that they are
waiting for certification from the Organics Materials Review Institute (OMRI). He
feels that these products that are OMRI approved should be used at our District
more.

Trustee Holland apologized to the board for not being able to attend a lot of the
meetings lately. He has not been feeling well.

13. ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business to come before the Board, it was M/S Trustee
Davis/Trustee Schulze to adjourn the meeting at 8:47 p.m.

________________________ _____________________
District Representative Date of Approval
MSMVCD

________________________ _____________________
Trustee Date of Approval
MSMVCD Board of Trustees





































1

STAFF REPORT

To: MSMVCD Board of Trustees

From: Philip D. Smith, District Manager

Date: April 15, 2015

Subject: Public Hearing and Close of Balloting for the proposed new Mosquito,

Vector and Disease Control Assessment (Assessment #3) for the

Marin/Sonoma Mosquito and Vector Control District

Recommendations

1. That the Board hold a public hearing for the proposed new Mosquito, Vector and

Disease Control Assessment (Assessment #3) for the Marin/Sonoma Mosquito and

Vector Control District.

2. After the conclusion of the public input portion of the public hearing, the Board

should close the balloting period and direct Gilardi & Co. LLC, the tabulator, to

tabulate all ballots received, and continue the public hearing until May 13, 2015.

Background

On December 10, 2014, this Board directed SCI Consulting Group, the Assessment

Engineer for this project, to proceed with assessment engineering for a new proposed

assessment for the continued and enhanced services to be provided by the District. The

Assessment Engineer subsequently prepared an Engineer’s Report detailing the benefits

from the proposed assessments, the method of assessment, an estimate of cost and

budget for the assessments, and justification of the proposed assessments.

The Engineer’s Report was made available to the Board and was adopted by Resolution

No. 2014/15-05 at the February 11, 2015 Board meeting. At that meeting, the Board



2

also directed the mailing of notices and ballots to property owners within the

boundaries of the proposed Assessment and set April 15, 2015 as the date for the public

hearing on the proposed assessments.

The purpose of this Public Hearing is to give all interested parties the opportunity to

hear, and have heard, comments regarding the proposed assessments and assessment

ballot proceeding, and for the District Board of Trustees to accept any additional ballots.

In addition, the balloting period officially closes at the conclusion of the public input

portion of today’s Public Hearing.

Following the close of the public input portion of the public hearing, the Board may

continue the public hearing until May 13, 2015 to allow sufficient time for the tabulation

of ballots received, and may direct Gilardi & Co. LLC, the tabulator, to commence

tabulation of all valid ballots that were received prior to the close of the public input

portion of the public hearing.

The tabulation of ballots is expected to be completed by the Board meeting scheduled

for May 13, 2015. At the May 13 meeting, the Board may consider — provided a

majority protest does not exist — a resolution to levy the assessments for fiscal year

2015-16. If a majority protest exists the assessments will not be levied and no action

will be required by the Board.



Marin/Sonoma Mosquito and Vector Control District – Public Hearing April 15, 2015
Public Hearing Outline Page 1 of 1

Marin/Sonoma Mosquito and Vector Control District

Public Hearing Outline
for the proposed new Marin/Sonoma Mosquito and Vector Control District,

Mosquito, Vector and Disease Control Assessment (Assessment #3)

Public Hearing Date/Time: April 15, 2015, 7:00 pm

OUTLINE OF PUBLIC HEARING:

1. Board President opens the Public Hearing and Consideration of the Levy of Assessments for the
proposed new Mosquito, Vector and Disease Control Assessment (Assessment #3) for the
Marin/Sonoma Mosquito and Vector Control District.

2. Introductory comments and general overview of proposed improvements by Staff and
representative from SCI Consulting Group, the Assessment Engineer.

3. Board President outlines the procedures for this agenda item and public hearing. The President
indicates that each public speaker must fill out a speaker card and will have 3 minutes to address
the Board. President also alerts the public that they can request a replacement ballot at the
meeting. (Indicate to public that all ballots must be submitted prior to the close of the public input
portion of the public hearing.)

4. President opens the Public Input and reiterates that all questions raised will be noted and
answered after all speakers have addressed the Board. The Public Hearing should be recorded.

5. Staff, Legal Counsel, and Assessment Engineer write down or log questions raised by speakers or
provided in written correspondence.

6. After all input has been received and there are no more speaker cards, Board President asks if
anyone else wishes to speak, add written comment, or provide other information to the Board. (All
oral questions must be asked and written questions must be submitted in this section before
questions are answered.)

7. Staff, Assessment Engineer, and Legal Counsel respond to questions raised.

8. Board President makes last call for submittal of ballots before closing the public input portion of
the hearing.

9. Board President asks for a motion to close the Public Input portion of public hearing.

10. Board discussion of item, if necessary.

11. Board President directs Gilardi & Co. LLC, the tabulator, to begin the tabulation of all returned
ballots.

12. Board President announces that the public hearing will be continued to the scheduled Board
meeting of May 13, 2015 at the Marin/Sonoma Mosquito and Vector Control District’s offices (at
595 Helman Lane in Cotati). At the continued public hearing, the results of the ballot tabulation
should be announced. After the results are announced, the Board can discuss the proposed
assessment and provide any further response to any comments from the public input portion of the
April 15 public hearing. If the tabulation is completed by this date and the results find that a
weighted majority of ballots submitted are in support of the proposed assessment, the Board may
consider a resolution to levy the assessments.



BALLOT TABULATION OBSERVER GUIDELINES
MARIN/SONOMA MOSQUITO & VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

MOSQUITO, VECTOR AND DISEASE ASSESSMENT

March 2015

Ballots will be tabulated following the close of the Public Hearing on Wednesday, April 15, 2015, commencing at 7:00 pm,
at the District headquarters, located at 595 Helman Lane, Cotati, California. The returned ballots will be tabulated
(counted) by an independent third-party, Gilardi & Company of San Rafael.

The District has no access to the ballots. The counting process, which will occur in mid to late April will be open to anyone
from the public who wishes to observe. Results of the tabulation are expected to be announced at a public meeting
scheduled for Wednesday, May 13, 2015, at 7:00 pm at the District headquarters, located at 595 Helman Lane, Cotati,
California.

Gilardi & Co. maintains a locked and secured building at all times. Visitors will need to use the intercom
system to be let in. The intercoms are located next to the doors of the building. They will then be met
at the door and escorted to the tabulation location after providing identification and signing in.

OBSERVER CHECK IN PROCEDURES:
 All Observers must provide identification and sign in daily at the ballot tabulation site

 After signing in, Observers will be given a badge that must be worn at all times while in the building

 When leaving for the day, Observers will need to sign out

 Observers will be given these Ballot Tabulation Observer Guidelines

OBSERVERS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR:
 Maintaining a respectful manner while observing the ballot tabulation processes

 Remaining in the area assigned for observation

 Ensuring they do not interfere with the ballot tabulation processes

OBSERVERS MAY:
 Observe the ballot tabulation from a location set aside for that purpose

 Take notes on the ballot tabulation procedures

 Ask questions of tabulation supervisors at the tabulation site

OBSERVERS MAY NOT:
 Interfere in any way with the tabulation process

 Touch any voting materials or equipment or sit at the official worktables

 Talk to tabulation workers while they are processing ballots

 Touch tabulation personnel

 Walk around the building unescorted by a Gilardi employee

 Eat or drink in ballot tabulation site

 Use cellular phones, pagers, two-way radios, cameras, tape recorders or other communication devices
inside the ballot tabulation area. Pagers and cellular phones must be set to silent or off mode while
observing the tabulation.

NOTE: Accredited Media will be permitted to take photographs, with permission from the tabulation
supervisor or their representative. Media must identify themselves and have accredited credentials displayed
on their person at all times.



AGREEMENT FOR GENERAL COUNSEL LEGAL SERVICES
BETWEEN

MARIN/SONOMA MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
AND

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

1. PARTIES AND DATE.

This Agreement is made and entered into as of the ______ day of ________, 2015, by
and between the Marin/Sonoma Mosquito and Vector Control District, a municipal corporation
of the State of California (“Client”) and Best Best & Krieger LLP, a limited liability partnership
engaged in the practice of law (“BB&K”).

2. RECITALS.

2.1 Client wishes to engage the services of BB&K as its General Counsel to perform
all necessary legal services for the Client on the terms set forth below.

3. TERMS.

3.1 Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on ________________, 2015
and shall continue in full force and effect until terminated in accordance with Section 3.12.

3.2 Scope of Services. BB&K shall serve as General Counsel and shall perform legal
services (“Services”) as may be required from time to time by the Client as set forth by this
Agreement, unless otherwise agreed to by the Client and BB&K. As part of the Services to be
performed hereunder, BB&K shall be responsible for the following:

3.2.1 Preparation for, and attendance at, regular meetings of the Client;

3.2.2 Provision of legal counsel at such other meetings as directed by the Client;

3.2.3 Preparation or review of all Client resolutions, together with such staff
reports, orders, agreements, forms, notices, declarations, certificates, deeds, leases and other
documents as requested by the Client;

3.2.4 Rendering to the officers and employees of the Client legal advice and
opinions on all legal matters affecting the Client, including new legislation and court decisions,
as directed by the Client;

3.2.5 Researching and interpreting laws, court decisions and other legal
authorities in order to prepare legal opinions and to advise the Client on legal matters pertaining
to Client operations, as directed by the Client;

3.2.6 Performing legal work pertaining to property acquisition, property
disposal, public improvements, public rights-of-way and easements, as directed by the Client;



2

3.2.7 Responding to inquiries and review for legal sufficiency, resolutions,
contracts, and administrative and personnel matters, as directed by the Client;

3.2.8 Representing and assisting on litigation matters, as directed by the Client.
Such services shall include, but shall not be limited to, the preparation for and making of
appearances, including preparing pleadings and petitions, making oral presentations, and
preparing answers, briefs or other documents on behalf of the Client, and any officer or
employee of the Client, in all federal and state courts of this State, and before any governmental
board or commission, including reviewing, defending or assisting any insurer of the Client or its
agents or attorneys with respect to any lawsuit filed against the Client or any officer or employee
thereof, for money or damages.

3.3 Designated General Counsel. Janet Coleson shall be designated as General
Counsel, and shall be responsible for the performance of all Services under this Agreement,
including the supervision of Services performed by other members of BB&K. No change in this
assignment shall be made without the consent of the Client.

3.4 Time of Performance. The Services of BB&K shall be performed expeditiously
in the time frames and as directed by the Client.

3.5 Assistance. The Client agrees to provide all information and documents
necessary for the attorneys at BB&K to perform their obligations under this Agreement.

3.6 Independent Contractor. BB&K shall perform all legal services required under
this Agreement as an independent contractor of the Client and shall remain, at all times as to the
Client, a wholly independent contractor with only such obligations as are required under this
Agreement. Neither the Client, nor any of its employees, shall have any control over the manner,
mode or means by which BB&K, its agents or employees, render the legal services required
under this Agreement, except as otherwise set forth. The Client shall have no voice in the
selection, discharge, supervision or control of BB&K’s employees, representatives or agents, or
in fixing their number, compensation, or hours of service.

3.7 Fees and Costs. BB&K shall render and bill for legal services in the following
categories and at rates set forth in Exhibit “A” and in accordance with the BB&K Billing Policies
set forth in Exhibit “D”, both of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
In addition, the Client shall reimburse BB&K for reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by
it in the performance of the Services under this Agreement. Authorized reimbursable expenses
shall include, but are not limited to, printing and copying expenses, mileage expenses at the rate
allowed by the Internal Revenue Service, to court appearances or destinations other than District
offices and to District offices for other than Board meetings or regular office hours, bridge tolls,
long distance telephone and facsimile charges, computerized research time (e.g. Lexis or
Westlaw), research services performed by BB&K’s library staff, extraordinary mail or delivery
costs (e.g. courier, overnight and express delivery), court fees, deposition and discovery costs
and similar costs relating to the Services that are generally chargeable to a client. However, no
separate charge shall be made by BB&K for secretarial or word processing services.



3

3.8 Billing. BB&K shall submit monthly to the Client a detailed statement of account
for Services. The Client shall review BB&K’s monthly statements and pay BB&K for Services
rendered and costs incurred, as provided for in this Agreement, on a monthly basis.

3.9 Annual Reviews. The Client and BB&K agree that a review of performance and
the compensation amounts referenced in this Agreement should occur at least annually.

3.10 Insurance. BB&K carries errors and omissions insurance with Lloyd’s of
London. After a standard deductible, this insurance provides coverage beyond what is required
by the State of California. A separate schedule containing BB&K’s insurance policies will be
available for inspection upon Client’s request.

3.11 Attorney-Client Privilege. Confidential communication between the Client and
BB&K shall be covered by the attorney-client privilege. As used in this article, “confidential
communication” means information transmitted between the Client and BB&K in the course of
the relationship covered by this Agreement and in confidence by a means that, so far as the
Client is aware, discloses the information to no third persons other than those who are present to
further the interests of the Client in the consultation or those to whom disclosure is reasonably
necessary for the transmission of the information or the accomplishment of the purpose for
which BB&K is consulted, and includes any legal opinion formed and advice given by BB&K in
the course of this relationship.

3.12 Termination of Agreement and Legal Services. This Agreement and the Services
rendered under it may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice from
either party, with or without cause. In the event of such termination, BB&K shall be paid for all
Services authorized by the Client and performed up through and including the effective date of
termination. BB&K shall also be reimbursed for all costs associated with transitioning any files
or other data or documents to a new law firm or returning them to the Client.

3.13 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, understandings or
agreements.

3.14 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
California. Venue shall be in Sonoma County.

3.15 Amendment; Modification. No supplement, modification or amendment of this
Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both parties.

3.16 Waiver. No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other default or
breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition. No waiver, benefit, privilege, or
service voluntarily given or performed by a party shall give the other party any contractual rights
by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.



4

3.17 Invalidity; Severability. If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid,
illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions
shall continue in full force and effect.

3.18 Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall
constitute an original.

3.19 Delivery of Notices. All notices permitted or required under this Agreement
notices shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight (48) hours
after deposit in the U.S. Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the party at its
applicable address. Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice
occurred, regardless of the method of service. All notices permitted or required under this
Agreement shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such other
address as the respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose:

Client: Marin/Sonoma Mosquito and Vector Control District
595 Helman Lane
Cotati, CA 94931
Attention: District Manager

BB&K: Best Best & Krieger LLP
2001 N. Main Street, Suite 390
Walnut Creek, CA 94596
Attention: Janet Coleson

3.20 Indemnification.

(A) BB&K agrees to indemnify District, its officers, employees and agents against,
and will hold and save each of them harmless from, any and all actions, suits, claims, damages to
persons or property, losses, costs, penalties, obligations, errors, omissions or liabilities (herein
“claims or liabilities”) that may be asserted or claimed by any person, firm or entity arising out
of or in connection with the work, operations or activities of BB&K, its agents, employees,
subcontractors, or invitees, provided for herein or arising from the acts or omissions of BB&K
hereunder, or arising from BB&K’s performance of or failure to perform any term, provision,
covenant or condition of this Agreement, except to the extent such claims or liabilities arise from
the negligence or willful misconduct of District, its officers, agents or employees.

(B) City acknowledges BB&K is being appointed as District Counsel, and has the
authority of that office. Accordingly, the District is responsible pursuant to Government Code
Section 825 for providing a defense for the General Counsel for actions within the scope of its
engagement hereunder. Therefore, District agrees to undertake its statutory duty and indemnify
BB&K, its officers, employees and agents against and will hold and save each of them harmless
from, any and all claims or liabilities that may be asserted or claims by any person, firm or entity
arising out of or in connection with the work, operations or activities of BB&K within the course
and scope of its performance hereunder, but nothing herein shall require District to indemnify



5

BB&K for liability arising from its own negligence or alleged negligence. In connection
herewith:

(i) District will promptly provide a defense and pay any judgment rendered
against the District, its officers, agency or employees for any such claims or liabilities arising out
of or in connection with such work, operations or activities of District hereunder; and

(ii) In the event BB&K, its officers, agents or employees is made a party to
any action or proceeding filed or prosecuted against District for such damages or other claims
solely arising out of or in connection with the work operation or activities of District hereunder,
District agrees to pay to BB&K, its officers, agents or employees any and all costs and expenses
incurred by attorney, its officers, agents or employees in such action or proceeding, including,
but not limited to, legal costs and attorneys’ fees.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Client and BB&K have executed this Agreement for
General Counsel Legal Services as of the date first written above.

(signatures contained on following pages)



6

SIGNATURE PAGE TO
AGREEMENT FOR GENERAL COUNSEL LEGAL SERVICES

BETWEEN
MARIN/SONOMA MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT AND

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

MARIN/SONOMA MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

By: _______________________________ Date: _____________________
Yvonne Van Dyke
Board President

Attest:

_______________________________
Dawn Williams
Board Secretary

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

By: _______________________________ Date: _____________________
Janet Coleson
Partner



7

EXHIBIT “A”
TO

AGREEMENT FOR GENERAL COUNSEL LEGAL SERVICES
BETWEEN

MARIN/SONOMA MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
AND

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

Legal services shall be billed to Client at the rates set forth in the chart below.

1. Basic General Counsel Legal Services - Description. Basic General Counsel legal
services shall include all services provided to Client that are not otherwise specifically identified
below as either Special Legal Services, Third Party Reimbursable Legal Services, or Public
Finance Legal Services (“Basic General Counsel Legal Services”).

2. Basic General Counsel Legal Services – Rates. The Client shall pay for Basic Legal
Services at the following rates:

All Attorneys $225/hour

3. Special Legal Services - Description. Special Legal Services shall include the following
types of services:

A. Litigation and formal administrative or other adjudicatory hearing matters
B. Labor relations and employment matters
C. Non-routine real estate matters (e.g. CC&R’s, deed or title work)
D. Land acquisition and disposal matters (including pre-condemnation)
E. Taxes, fees and charges matters (e.g. Prop. 218 & Mitigation Fee Act)
F. Public construction disputes
G. Non-routine contract negotiation matters (including non-BB&K model

agreements and franchise agreements)
H. Non-routine land use and development matters (including general plan

updates, Williamson Act issues, annexations and development
agreements)

I. Environmental matters (e.g. CEQA, NEPA, endangered species)
J. Water law matters (e.g. water rights & quality)
K. Tax and ERISA related matters
L. Toxic substances matters (e.g. CERCLA, RCRA)
M. Complex public utility matters (e.g. electric, natural gas,

telecommunications, water, rail or transit that involve state or federal
regulatory issues)

N. Renewable energy and energy efficiency project contracts and power
purchase agreements

O. Advocacy matters (e.g. legislative and regulatory)
P. Other matters mutually agreed upon between BBK and the District



8

Manager

4. Special Legal Services – Rates. The Client shall pay for Special Legal Services at the
following rates:

All Attorneys $225 - $295/hour depending upon attorney’s experience

5. Agreement Regarding Rate Categories. If BB&K believes that a matter falls within the
Special Legal Services, Third Party Reimbursable Legal Services, or Public Finance Legal
Services rate categories, BB&K shall seek approval from the District Manager or his/her
designee. The District Manager’s or his/her designee's approval of such a request from BB&K
shall not be unreasonably withheld.

6. Additional Billing Personnel.
If, as, and when BB&K employs additional or different billing personnel, including, but not
limited to paralegals or law clerks, this Agreement may be supplemented by written
administrative memoranda, providing for the categories and billing rates for such personnel,
which memoranda may be approved by the District Manager.

7. Annual Adjustments; Other Mutual Adjustments. The rates or amounts provided for in
Sections 1 through 6 above may be increased as follows: Individual rates which are specific to
individual attorneys and/or legal personnel are reviewed annually and may be increased from
time to time with advanced written notice to the client. In addition to such rate increase, either
BB&K or the Client may initiate consideration of a rate increase at any time.



9

EXHIBIT “B”
TO

AGREEMENT FOR GENERAL COUNSEL LEGAL SERVICES
BETWEEN

MARIN/SONOMA MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
AND

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

THIRD PARTY REIMBURSABLE BILLING POLICIES

1. Third Party Reimbursable Legal Services - Description. Third Party Reimbursable Legal
Services shall include legal services provided to the District for which the District receives
reimbursement from a developer or other third party. These reimbursable legal services typically
include review of CC&Rs; establishment of financing districts (i.e., Assessment Districts); and
projects for which the District is entitled to reimbursement.

2. Third Party Reimbursable Legal Services - Rates. The Client shall pay for Third Party
Reimbursable Legal Services at BB&K's then current published standard private client rates,
minus fifteen percent (15%). Upon execution of this Agreement, BB&K shall provide a copy of
its published rate schedule to the Client. BB&K shall also provide annual written updates to the
Client when changes are made to the published rate schedule.



10

EXHIBIT “C”
TO

AGREEMENT FOR GENERAL COUNSEL LEGAL SERVICES
BETWEEN

MARIN/SONOMA MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
AND

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

PUBLIC FINANCE & BOND BILLING POLICIES

1. Public Finance Legal Services – Description & Rates. The Client shall pay for Public
Finance Legal Services at the rates set forth for Public Finance Legal Services, below. For bond
counsel and special counsel services in connection with the financing of public facilities, BB&K
shall be compensated, depending upon the type of bonds, certificates of participation or other
obligations that are to be issued, based on the following schedules. Unless otherwise mutually
agreed, our fees as bond counsel on these financings will be payable from proceeds of each
series of the bonds upon their issuance.

A. Certificates of Participation and Revenue Bonds. For services in connection with
the issuance and sale of certificates of participation and revenue bonds, BB&K shall be paid a
fee, which will be the greater of (i) $35,000 or (ii) an amount based on the total principal amount
of the certificates of participation or bonds to be sold, computed as follows:

.50% of the first $10 million of the amount of the certificates or bonds issued,
plus

.25% of the next $10 million of the amount thereof, plus

.125% of the amount thereof, if any, over $20 million.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in those cases where the fees are reimbursable by a third
party, at BB&K's option it may proceed on an hourly basis and utilize the Third Party
Reimbursable Legal Services category provided for in this Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in those cases where the fees are reimbursable by a third
party, at BB&K's option it may proceed on an hourly basis and utilize the Third Party
Reimbursable Legal Services category provided for in this Agreement with respect to services
rendered for the formation of or annexation to a CFD, as well as the negotiation and preparation
of funding agreements and joint financing agreements. Hourly compensation shall be payable
solely from deposits of third parties and bond counsel fees shall be payable solely from the
proceeds of the sale of bonds.



11

B. Assessment Districts. For services in connection with the issuance and sale of
bonds of assessment districts, BB&K shall be paid a fee, which will be the greater of (i) $35,000
or (ii) an amount based on the total principal amount of the bonds to be sold, computed as
follows:

.50% of the first $6 million of the amount of the bonds issued, plus

.25% of the next $10 million of the amount thereof, plus

.125% of the amount thereof, if any, over $16 million.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in those cases where the fees are reimbursable by a third
party, at BB&K's option it may proceed on an hourly basis and utilize the Third Party
Reimbursable Legal Services category provided for in this Agreement with respect to services
rendered for the formation of or annexation to an AD, as well as the negotiation and preparation
of funding agreements and joint financing agreements. Hourly compensation shall be payable
solely from deposits of third parties and bond counsel fees shall be payable solely from the
proceeds of the sale of bonds.

C. Tax Allocation Bonds. For services in connection with the issuance and sale of
tax allocation bonds. BB&K shall be paid a fee, which will be the greater of (i) $35,000, or (ii)
an amount based on the total principal amount of the bonds to be sold, computed as follows:

.50% of the first $6 million of the amount of bonds issued, plus

.25% of the next $4 million of the amount of bonds issued, plus

.20% of the next $5 million of the amount of bonds issued, plus

.15% of the next $5 million of the amount of bonds issued, plus

.125% of the amount thereof, if any, over $20 million.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in those cases where the fees are reimbursable by a third
party, at BB&K's option it may proceed on an hourly basis and utilize the Third Party
Reimbursable Legal Services category provided for in this Agreement.

D. Investment and Other Agreements. For investment agreements, derivative
transactions or interest rate swaps relating to of any bond issue, a separate fee will be charged
depending on the type of derivative. Generally, our fee for a derivative transaction mirrors our
bond counsel fee. Review of investment agreements will be charged at our hourly rates.

E. Issuer’s Counsel Opinions. For all Issuer’s Counsel opinions provided by BB&K
in connection with any bond financing, fees shall be the following: (1) for opinions on financings
for which BB&K does not provide bond counsel and disclosure counsel services, $10,000; (2)
for opinions on financings for which BB&K provides bond counsel services only, $5,000; (3) for



12

opinions on financings for which BB&K provides disclosure counsel services only, $2,500; and
(4) for opinions on financings for which BB&K provides both bond and disclosure counsel
services, there will be no charge.

F. Other Public Finance Services. If other services are requested by the District that
are not within the scope of those provided for above, they will be performed on an hourly basis
at the Special Legal Services category provided for in the Agreement.



EXHIBIT “D”
TO

AGREEMENT FOR GENERAL COUNSEL LEGAL SERVICES
BETWEEN

MARIN/SONOMA MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
AND

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

BB&K BILLING POLICIES

Our century of experience has shown that the attorney-client relationship works best
when there is mutual understanding about fees, expenses, billing and payment terms. Therefore,
this statement is intended to explain our billing policies and procedures. Clients are encouraged
to discuss with us any questions they have about these policies and procedures. Clients may
direct specific questions about a bill to the attorney with whom the client works or to Judy
Ismael of our Accounting Department. Any specific billing arrangements different from those
set forth below will be confirmed in a separate written agreement between the client and the
firm.

Fees for Professional Services

Our fees for the legal work we will undertake will be based in substantial part on time
spent by personnel in our office on that client's behalf. In special circumstances which will be
discussed with the client and agreed upon in writing, fees will be based upon the novelty or
difficulty of the matter, or the time or other special limitations imposed by the client.

Hourly rates are set to reflect the skill and experience of the attorney or other legal
personnel rendering services on the client's behalf. Hourly rates are reviewed annually to
accommodate rising firm costs and to reflect changes in attorney status as lawyers attain new
levels of legal experience.

Fees For Other Services, Costs and Expenses

We attempt to serve all our clients with the most effective support systems available.
Therefore, in addition to fees for professional legal services, we also charge separately for some
other services and expenses to the extent of their use by individual clients. These charges
include but are not limited to, mileage at the current IRS approved rate per mile, extraordinary
telephone and document delivery charges, copying charges, computerized research, court filing
fees and other court-related expenditures including court reporter and transcription fees. No
separate charge is made for secretarial or word processing services; those costs are included
within the above hourly rates.



14

Monthly Invoices and Payment

Best Best & Krieger LLP provides our clients with monthly invoices for legal services
performed and expenses incurred. Invoices are due and payable upon receipt.

Each monthly invoice reflects both professional and other fees for services rendered
through the end of the prior month, as well as expenses incurred on the client's behalf that have
been processed by the end of the prior month. Processing of some expenses is delayed until the
next month and billed thereafter.

Our fees are not contingent upon any aspect of the matter and are due upon receipt. All
billings are due and payable within ten days of presentation unless the full amount is covered by
the balance of an advance held in our trust account. If a bill is not paid within 30 days, a late
charge of one percent per month on the unpaid invoice shall be added to the balance owed,
commencing with the next statement and continuing until paid.

It is our policy to treat every question about a bill promptly and fairly. It is also our
policy that if a client does not pay an invoice within 60 days of mailing, we assume the client is,
for whatever reason, refusing to pay. We will then advise the client by letter that the client may
pay the invoice within 14 days or the firm will take appropriate steps to withdraw as attorney of
record. If the delay is caused by a problem in the invoice, we must rely upon the client to raise
that with us during the 14-day period.

From time to time clients have questions about the format of the bill or description of
work performed. If you have any such questions, please ask them when you receive the bill so
we may address them on a current basis.

Changes in Budgets

Because of the uncertainties involved, any estimates of anticipated fees that we provide at
the request of a client for budgeting purposes, or otherwise, can only be an approximation of
potential fees.

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP


	A041515.pdf
	draftM021115.pdf
	financials for april,15  pkt.pdf
	Marin-Sonoma MVCD - PH Staff Report - 4-15-15.pdf
	Marin-Sonoma MVCD - PH Outline - 4-15-15.pdf
	MSMVCD - Observer Guidelines_Gilardi revisions 3-31-15.pdf
	Agreement - General Counsel (2).pdf

